AGREEMENT BETWEEN

. 2 . 0 3 2 8

MIDDLESEX COUNTY BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES

AND

MIDDLESEX COUNTY WELFARE ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES' ORGANIZATION

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 1985 THROUGH JUNE 30, 1987

			•

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
PREAMBLE		
ARTICLE I	ORGANIZATION RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE II	CONTRACT PERIOD	2
ARTICLE III	FAIR PRACTICES	3
ARTICLE IV	ORGANIZATION RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE V	RESPONSIBLE RELATIONS	6
ARTICLE VI	HOURS OF WORK	7
ARTICLE VII	HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES	8
ARTICLE VIII	MEDICAL INSURANCE	13
ARTICLE IX	TRANSPORTATION AND REIMBURSEMENT	16
ARTICLE X	LONGEVITY	17
ARTICLE XI	CONFERENCE DAYS	18
ARTICLE XII	PERSONNEL PRACTICES	19
ARTICLE XIII	EFFECTIVE LAWS	20
ARTICLE XIV	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	21
ARTICLE XV	SALARIES	29
ARTICLE XVI	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	33
ARTICLE XVII	FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT	34
ARTICLE XVIII	HEALTH AND SAFETY	35
ARTICLE XIX	EMPLOYMENT SECURITY	36
APPENDIX A	CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SCHEDULE SALARY RANGES	

			, ,

# PREAMBLE

This Agreement made between the Middlesex County Board of Social Services (herein referred to as the Board) and the Middlesex County Welfare Administrative Employees' Organization (herein referred to as the Organization) has as its intent and purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the Board and employees represented by the Organization; the establishment of equitable, amicable and peaceful procedures for resolution of all disputes and grievances; and the determination of wages, hours of work and other terms and conditions of employment.

## ARTICLE I - ORGANIZATION RECOGNITION

A. The Board agrees to recognize the Middlesex County Welfare Administrative Employees' Organization as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative of employees
in the following job titles:

Administrative Analyst

Administrative Supervisor of Income Maintenance

Administrative Supervisor of Social Work

Assistant Administrative Supervisor of Income Maintenance

Assistant Administrative Supervisor of Social Work

Assistant Chief Investigator

Assistant Training Supervisor

Chief Clerk

Chief Investigator

Chief of Administrative Services

Consultant on Aging

Data Processing Coordinator

Field Office Supervisor

Homemaker Service Supervisor/Senior Community Planner

Management Specialist

Public Information Officer

Senior Personnel Technician

Supervising Administrative Analyst

Training Supervisor

B. Any new title authorized for use by the Board will be negotiated for inclusion or exclusion from the bargaining unit. If the parties are unable to agree on the inclusion or exclusion of a title, the Organization will pursue procedures under the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Act. - 2 -

ARTICLE II - CONTRACT PERIOD

A. The Agreement shall be effective for the period July 1, 1985 through June 30, 1987.

B. By this agreement, this Contract and all its provisions shall be extended to remain

in full force and effect during any period of negotiations on a succeeding contract

which continues beyond the expiration date of this Contract.

C. Should the State of New Jersey and/or the County of Middlesex adopt or allow

for a change, increase or improvement in the items below during the life of this

Contract, the Board agrees to notify the Organization of said plan as soon as reason-

ably possible and to reopen negotiations within twenty (20) days of receipt of a

written request from the Organization. When both parties agree to the adoption

of such change, increase or improvement, it will be subject to the approval of the

Board of Chosen Freeholders. The items are:

Medicai Insurance

Benefit Time

Transportation Allowance

### ARTICLE III - FAIR PRACTICES

- A. The Board and the Organization agree that the provisions of the Contract shall be applied equally to all employees covered by this Contract and there shall be no discrimination as to age, sex, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin, political or religious opinions, sexual preference or physical handicaps.
- B. The Board agrees not to interfere with the rights of employees covered under the terms of this Agreement to become members of the Organization and to participate in Organizational activities permissable under the law of this Agreement.
- C. The Organization recognizes its responsibility as exclusive collective negotiations representative and agrees to admit all eligible employees into the bargaining unit and represent them without discrimination or interference.

### ARTICLE IV - ORGANIZATION RIGHTS

- A. The Board agrees to deduct from the pay of each employee who furnishes a written authorization for such deduction in a form acceptable to the Board, during each calendar month, the amount of monthly Organization Dues. Should the Organization change the dues deduction, they must notify the Board of the change and certify the amount, in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to the month in which the change occurs.
- B. The Board further agrees to deduct, in accordance with P.L. 1979, Chapter 477 as it relates to the Agency Shop provisions, from the pay of each employee covered by this Agreement who does not furnish a written authorization for deduction of Organization Dues, a Representation Fee equal to 85% of the Organization Dues, as may be certified to the Board by the Organization at least thirty (30) days prior to the month in which the deduction of dues is to be made, commencing ninety (90) days after the date of hire of such employee. However, in the event of rehire, such dues shall commence after thirty (30) days of date of rehire.
- C. Deduction of Organization Dues and Representation Fees made pursuant hereto shall be remitted by the Board to the Organization at the end of the calendar month in which such deductions are made, together with a list of employees from whose pay such deductions were made.
- D. The Organization shall indemnify, defend and save the Board harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of any of the above deductions.

- E. 1. The Board agrees to furnish one bulletin board at 125 New Street, New Brunswick in a convenient place to be used exclusively by the Organization. The Organization will notify the Board of the person who will be responsible for posting material on the board.
  - 2. The Organization may post any appropriate material pertaining to Organizational matters such as appointments, meeting announcements, social and recreational events, achievements, Organization election results and information, but excluding election campaign material, as long as none of these contain anything profane, obscene or defamatory of any individual or the Agency.

# ARTICLE V - RESPONSIBLE RELATIONS

Both the Board and the Organization recognize the desirability of both parties responding in a professional and courteous manner and to work together to promote the accomplishment of Agency goals and objectives. Both parties agree to apply the terms of this Contract fairly, in accordance with its intent and meaning, and consistent with the Organization's status as exclusive bargaining representative of all employees in the unit.

The Organization shall be given reasonable notice, in advance, of any adverse action immediately and directly affecting terms and conditions of employment of employees covered by this Contract, unless the Board deems immediate action necessary in order to implement inherent or express management prerogatives or to fulfill management objectives as provided in Article XVI. If immediate action has been taken, the Board shall promptly notify a member of the Organization's Executive Board.

# ARTICLE VI - HOURS OF WORK

#### A. Flex-Time Hours

Schedule A 8:00 A.M. - 3:45 P.M.

Schedule B 8:30 A.M. - 4:15 P.M.

- B. Each employee shall sign in and out on a bi-weekly sign-in-out record. The record will be submitted to the Office of the Director, by noon, every Monday before payday.
- C. Each employee will be allowed 45 minutes for lunch and one 15-minute break during each half-day of work.
- D. Any employee required to be at work before or after his/her normal workshift shall be entitled to a minimum of four (4) hours pay, portal to portal, at 1.5 times the employee's normal pay rate if the required hours are not contiguous with the employee's normal workshift.

#### ARTICLE VII - HOLIDAYS AND LEAVES

- A. Each employee covered by this Contract shall be allowed four (4) days per annum for religious observances or for personal business. Personal leave days must be pro-rated for employees in the first year of continuous service with the Board according to time earned, i.e. employee earns ½ day every ½ months with a maximum of 4 personal days per calendar year. These days are in addition to vacation days or sick days allowed to all employees. These personal leave days, if unused, shall not be carried over into the following calendar year.
- B. 1. Effective January 1, 1984, full-time employees will be granted vacation leave as follows:

One (1) working day for each month of service or major fraction thereof, during the remainder of the calendar year following date of appointment;

After one year of service through five years of service, twelve (12) working days per year;

After five years of service through nine years of service, fifteen (15) working days per year;

After nine years of service through twelve years of service, sixteen (16) working days per year;

After twelve years of service through twenty years of service, twenty (20) working days per year;

After twenty years of service, twenty-five (25) working days per year.

Service includes all temporary and/or provisional continuous service immediately prior to permanent appointment with the Welfare Board or other county office of the same county provided there is no break in service of more than one week. Any increase in vacation days based on years of continuous county service will be credited at the beginning of the calendar year in which the employee attains it with the anticipation that his/her employment will be continuous throughout the calendar year.

- B. 2. <u>Part-time</u> employees will earn vacation leave on a pro-rated basis in accordance with B.l.
  - Seasonal employees may be granted vacation lave on the basis stated in B.1.
  - 4. <u>Employees resigning or retiring</u> shall be granted vacation leave pro-rated on the basis of current annual allowance divided by 12, multiplied by the months of service completed within the particular year.
  - 5. Accumulation of vacation Where, in any calendar year, the vacation leave or any part thereof is not granted by reason of pressure of work, such leaves of absence or parts thereof not granted shall accumulate and may be carried over to the next succeeding calendar year only.

- 6. Vacation for veterans A returning veteran shall be entitled to full vacation time for the year of return and for the year preceding, provided that latter can be taken during the year of return.
- 7. Deceased employees Whenever any employee in the classified service dies, payment shall be made to the estate of such deceased employee for all earned and unused vacation leave, within the limits set forth in (5) above, based on the last approved compensation rate for the deceased employee.
- C. Sick leave shall be accrued at the rate of one (1) day per month or major fraction thereof during the remainder of the first calendar year of employment and 1\frac{1}{2} days per month thereafter. Sick days may be accumulated indefinitely. Sick leave shall be granted in accordance with the following definition:

"Sick leave means the absence of an employee from duty because of illness, injury, pregnancy disability, exposure to contagious disease, necessary attendance upon a member of the immediate family seriously ill, death in the immediate family or other relatives living in employee's household. A physician's certificate may be required whenever an employee is on sick leave for five consecutive working days or more."

D. All employees who retire from P.E.R.S. after January 1, 1977, shall be entitled to receive a lump sum payment for unused accumulated sick leave earned during continuous, unbroken service since the most recent date of hire. This shall be computed at the rate of one-half (\frac{1}{2}) of the eligible employee's daily rate of pay for each day of earned and accumulated sick leave based upon the average annual compensa-

tion received during the last year of employment prior to the effective date of retirement, provided that such payment shall not exceed \$12,000. An employee who elects a deferred retirement benefit shall not be eligible for this lump sum payment.

- E. Leaves of absence with or without pay will be granted according to Civil Service rules and further clarified by Agency policy and procedure.
- F. Every employee covered by this Contract shall receive up to three (3) days Bereavement Leave in the event of the death of that employee's spouse, child, parent, grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt or uncle, step-child, step-parent, niece, nephew, or relative who resides in the home of the employee. The time during which this Bereavement Leave will be allowed shall be at the discretion of the employee within ten (10) days of the date of death.
- G. The following holidays will be observed pursuant to County policy:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King's Birthday
Lincoln's Birthday
Washington's Birthday
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
General Election Day
Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

Whenever any of the above holidays fall on a Sunday, the following day is granted and whenever such holiday falls on a Saturday, it shall be celebrated on the preceding Friday. Additional holidays as established from time to time by gubernatorial proclamation, by appropriate authority by rule, proclamation or order in a given locality may be granted for employees.

If a holiday, as indicated above, occurs while an employee is on leave with pay (excluding educational leave), the day shall be recorded as a holiday instead of sick or vacation leave. Holidays do not accrue during any leave of absence. If an employee is absent without pay before and after a holiday, he/she shall not be paid for that particular holiday.

H. The Board agrees to provide employees with semi-annual statements indicating the balance of their unused sick, vacation and personal days.

### ARTICLE VIII - MEDICAL INSURANCE

- A. 1. The Board and the Organization agree on current practice by which each individual employee is covered by medical insurance in the form of Blue Cross/Blue Shield, Major Medical and Rider J or by the Rutgers Community Health Plan, Healthways or HMO/NJ, if geographically appropriate.
  - 2. Employees' eligible dependents who are enrolled in the above medical insurance program will be covered and the premiums will be paid by the Board up to the cost of such coverage under Blue Cross/Blue Shield, Major Medical and Rider J Option of the New Jersey State Health Benefits Plan.
- B. The Board and the Organization agree on the current practice by which each employee is covered by Dental Insurance through the Middlesex County Employees Group Dental Insurance Program, effective January 1, 1984 to December 31, 1986. The plan is administered by the Great West Life Assurance Company. The schedule of payments shall be that which is adopted by the Middlesex County Board of Chosen Freeholders for the above-mentioned contract period. Dependent coverage premiums will be shared by the Board and the employees. The per-pay premium deductions are as follows:

Coverage	Per-ray Deduction Effective 12/1/83
Single	<b>\$</b> O
Modified Family	\$ 3.46
Family	\$ 14.31

In the event there is any proposed change in this plan by the County of Middlesex before the expiration of this Contract, the parties agree to immediately re-open negotiations regarding same.

- C. The Board and the Organization agree on current practice by which each individual employee is covered by a Drug Prescription Program, known as Pharmaceutical Card System, Inc., insured by the Great West Life Assurance Company, or a similar pian of equal benefit.
- D. The Board and the Organization agree on current practice by which employees who retire and who have completed 25 years of service credit in the Public Employees Retirement System, will have hospitalization insurance paid by the Board upon such retirement, according to County policy.
- E. The Board and the Organization agree on the implementation of a Vision Care Program for all employees who have completed at least two (2) months of continuous service with the Board. Each covered employee shall be eligible to receive a maximum of \$60 per two-year period as reimbursement for vision care services. The eligible family members group, composed of spouse and/or dependent children, shall be eligible to receive an aggregate maximum of \$60 per two-year period as reimbursement for vision care services. Coverage will be in accordance with the Vision Care Policy contained in the Agency Personnel Manual.
- F. The Board agrees to continue to provide Disability Insurance through the New Jersey State Temporary Disability Benefits Program, in accordance with P.L. 1980, Chapter 18, approved March 26, 1980. It is understood that said law requires contributions from the employer and the employee.

- G. 1. The Middlesex County Board of Social Services will extend to a maximum period of ninety (90) days all medical insurance coverage of eligible employees and their covered dependents enrolled in the State Health Benefits Program upon exhaustion of such employee's accumulated sick and vacation leave and who are granted approved sick leave without pay, with the Board of Social Services paying the cost.
  - 2. In those instances where the leave of absence (or an extension of such leave) without pay is for a period of more than ninety (90) days, the employee may still prepay all medical coverage premiums for the next two hundred and seventy (270) days of the approved leave of absence following the period of ninety (90) days paid for by the Board of Social Services as provided in the paragraph above.

# ARTICLE IX - TRANSPORTATION AND REIMBURSEMENT

Employees who are authorized to use their own cars will be compensated at the rate of 20¢/mile.

The Board will reimburse an employee \$6 per month toward the cost of business protection on their automobile insurance policy. The employee must provide written documentation that such coverage is in effect in order to qualify for said reimbursement.

# ARTICLE X - LONGEVITY

Longevity pay will be granted by the Board in accordance with the County Plan, as promulgated by the Board of Chosen Freeholders of Middlesex County, which is as follows:

All eligible employees shall be entitled to receive Longevity which will be based upon their salary (maximum base \$23,000) as of December 31st of the previous year, starting with the completion of the 8th year of service, i.e.

9 through 15 years of service = 2%

16 through 20 years of service = 4%

21 years and over = 6%

If the Board of Chosen Freeholders makes a change in its Longevity Plan which would allow for any increase or upgrade of the plan herein specified, the Board of Social Services agrees to implement said change as of its effective date.

# ARTICLE XI - CONFERENCE DAYS

Fifteen (15) aggregate days per calendar year, if necessary, with pay shall be granted by the Agency for Organization members to conduct Organization business or to attend labor related conferences. The Organization shall request these days at least one week in advance, unless the request cannot be practically given, subject to the approval of the Director of Welfare or his/her designee. Granting of such leave to an employee shall not be unreasonably withheld.

### ARTICLE XII - PERSONNEL PRACTICES

A. Each employee shall have the right to see and respond to any and all documents before they are placed in his/her personnel file, and to designate having seen the documents, by use of initials.

If the employee wants to respond to any documents in his/her file, such response shall be directed to the Director of the Agency and shall become part of the employ-ee's personnel file.

Each employee has the right to one copy of each document in his/her personnel file.

B. The Organization shall be permitted to have one (1) member attend the public session of the monthly Board Meetings. Said member shall incur no loss of pay for time so spent.

# ARTICLE XIII - EFFECTIVE LAWS

All provisions of this Agreement are subject to iaw. In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be rendered illegal or invalid under any applicable law, such illegality or invalidity shall affect only that particular provision which shall be deemed of no force or effect, but it shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE XIV - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### A. PURPOSE

- 1. The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, equitable solutions to the problems which may arise affecting the terms and conditions of employment. The parties agree that this procedure will be kept as informal as may be appropriate.
- 2. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee to discuss a matter informally with any appropriate member of the Administration. If such discussion involves a matter covered by the definition of a grievance in Section B, the Organization shall be advised of the adjustment of the issue.
- This constitutes the sole and exclusive method for resolving grievances between the parties covered by this Agreement.

### B. DEFINITIONS

- 1. The term "grievance" shall mean an allegation that there has been:
  - a. A violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of the terms of this Agreement which is subject to the grievance procedure outlined herein and shall hereinafter be referred to as a "contractual grievance"; or

- b. Inequitable, improper, unjust application or misinterpretation of rules or regulations, existing policy, or Orders applicable to the Board of Social Services, which do not constitute a violation of the terms of this Agreement which shall be processed up to and including the Board of Social Services and shall hereinafter be referred to as a "non-contractual grievance".
- 2. The term "employee" or "grievant" as used in this Article shall also mean a group of employees with a grievance, or the Organization.

# C. PRESENTATION OF A GRIEVANCE

The Board agrees that in the presentation of a grievance there shail be no loss of pay for the time spent in presenting the grievance by the grievant, Organization representative and an Organization recorder.

### D. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

### Step 1

The grievant and his/her Organization Shop Steward shall present the employee's written grievance or dispute within fifteen (i5) working days of its occurrence to the Deputy Director. Failure to act within said fifteen (i5) days shall be deemed to constitute an abandonment of the grievance. The Deputy Director shall schedule a hearing within ten (10) working days of receipt of the grievance and shall render a decision in writing to the grievant within ten (10) working days of the hearing.

Step i may be waived by mutual agreement between the parties.

### Step 2

If the grievance is not settled through Step 1, the same shall be presented in writing by the employee and the employee's Organization representative who is the Shop Steward or Local Organization Officer to the Director within ten (10) working days of the written response from Step 1. The Director shall hold a hearing within ten (10) working days of the request for the hearing and render a decision within five (5) working days.

### Step 3

Should the grievant disagree with the decision of the Director, the aggrieved may, within five (5) working days, submit to the Board a statement in writing and signed as to the issues in dispute. In the event the grievant files his/her statement with the Board at least ten (10) working days prior to a Board meeting, the matter shall be placed on the agenda for that Board meeting. Statements filed less than ten (10) working days before a Board meeting may be heard by the Board at the meeting or, at the Board's discretion, placed on the agenda for the following meeting. The Board shall review the decision of the Director together with the disputed areas submitted by the grievant. The grievant and/or the Organization representative may request an appearance before the Board. The Board will render its decision within eight (8) working days after the Board meeting at which the matter has been reviewed. The decision of the Board shall be final in those grievances which are defined as non-contractual. The grievant may be represented by an Organization Officer. A minority organization shall not present or process a grievance.

### Step 4

#### Arbitration

- a. Only in the case of a contractual grievance, as defined herein, if no settlement of the grievance has been reached between the parties, the grievance may be moved to arbitration only by the Organization within thirty (30) days of receipt of a decision from Step 3.
- b. (1) Any unresolved contractual grievance (as defined in B.1.a., Definitions, above) except matters involving appointment, promotion, or assignment or matters within the exclusive province of Civil Service may be appealed to arbitration (only by the Organization). The Organization must file the request for arbitration within thirty (30) working days after the receipt of the Step 3 decision.
  - (2) Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as compelling the Organization to submit a grievance to arbitration or to represent an employee before Civil Service. The Organization's decision to request the movement of a grievance to arbitration or to terminate the grievance prior to submission to arbitration shall be final as to the interests of the grievant and the Organization.
  - (3) Where the grievance involved an alleged violation of individual rights specified in Civil Service Law and Rules for which a specific appeal to Civil Service is available, the individual may present his/her complaint

to Civil Service directly. The grievant may pursue the Civil Service procedure or the grievance procedure as herein provided. Once the grievant makes the selection of procedure, such election shall be deemed final and binding and constitute an absolute waiver of the procedure not selected. The election will be made in writing at the appropriate time.

- c. Should the Organization wish to move a grievance to arbitration, the Organization shall notify the American Arbitration Association of same and request a list of arbitrators to be furnished to the Board and Organization. Selection of an arbitrator shall conform to the procedures of the American Arbitration Association. The parties shall meet at least ten (10) working days prior to the date of the arbitration hearing to frame the issues to be submitted to the arbitrator and to stipulate the facts of the matter in an effort to expedite the hearing.
- d. The arbitrator shall hear the matter on the evidence and within the meaning of this Agreement and/or such rules and regulations as may be in effect by the Civil Service Commission. The arbitrator shall have the full power to hear the grievance and make a decision, which decision shall neither modify, add to, nor subtract from the terms of the Agreement and the referenced policies. The decision shall be rendered within thirty (30) days of the hearing.

- e. The arbitrator shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, or modify the provisions of this Agreement and shall confine his/her decision solely to the interpretation and application of this Agreement. He/She shall confine himself/herself to the precise issue submitted for arbitration and shall have no authority to determine any other issues not so submitted to him/her, nor shall he/she submit observations or declaration of opinions which are not essential in reaching the determination.
- f. The cost of the arbitrator and his/her expenses shall be borne equally by both parties. Any other expenses incurred in connection with the arbitration shall be paid by the party incurring same.
- g. The cost of the transcript, if any, will be borne by the party requesting it.
  If both parties request a transcript, the cost will be shared equally.
- h. The arbitrator may prescribe an appropriate back-pay remedy when he/she finds a violation of this Agreement, provided such a remedy is permitted by law and is consistent with the terms of this Agreement, except that he/she may not make an award which exceeds the Board of Social Services' authority.

The arbitrator shall have no authority to prescribe a monetary award as a penalty for a violation of this Agreement.

- i. The decision or award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the Board of Social Services, the Organization, and the grievant or grievants to the extent permitted by and in accordance with applicable law and this Agreement. Disciplinary disputes shall be subject to the Grievance Procedure herein set forth except that arbitration, if selected, shall be advisory. Binding arbitration for disciplinary disputes shall be re-incorporated into the Agreement when and if allowed by law.
- j. Either party shall have the right to seek judicial review of the matter as prescribed by New Jersey statutes.
- E. There shall be no loss of pay for employees for time spent either as a grievant, witness, one Organization representative or Organization recorder in any step of the Grievance Procedure.
- F. Employee grievances shall be presented on prepared forms. The Grievance Procedure, as defined herein, shall be strictly adhered to. Time limits may be waived only by mutual consent of the parties. It is understood that employees must sign their individual grievances.
- G. Grievance resolutions or decisions at Step 1 through Step 4 shall not constitute a precedent in any arbitration or other proceeding unless a specific agreement to that effect is made by the authorized representatives of both parties. This is not to be construed as limiting the right of either party to introduce relevant evidence, including such grievance resolution, as to the prior conduct of the other party.

H. One (1) Organization member, designated by the Organization, shall be allowed a maximum of one (1) hour during working hours to investigate each grievance.

### ARTICLE XV - SALARIES

Employees covered by this Agreement shall be compensated in accordance with the following:

## A. Effective July I, 1985

- 1. All employees covered by this Contract shall have their salaries adjusted step-to-step from the Compensation Schedule effective January i, 1985 to the Compensation Schedule effective July 1, i985 found in Appendix A of this Agreement, which reflects approximately a four (4%) percent increase over the Compensation Schedule effective January 1, i985.
- In addition to A.1. above, the tities of Chief Clerk, Homemaker Service Supervisor/Senior Community Planner and Senior Personnel Technician shall be moved step-to-step one additional range on the salary schedule to Range 25.
- 3. The July 1, 1985 Compensation Schedule reflects the inclusion of one additional step (10th Step) on each salary range, which establishes a new maximum for each salary range. All employees who had reached max on or before July 1, 1984, and who have a satisfactory evaluation for the 12-month period ending June 30, 1985, shall receive an Anniversary Increment placing them on the tenth (10th) step of their salary range effective July 1, 1985.

# B. Effective January 1, 1986

1. All employees covered by this Contract shall have their salaries adjusted step-to-step from the Compensation Schedule effective July 1, 1985 to the Compensation Schedule effective January 1, 1986 found in Appendix A of this Agreement, which reflects approximately a two (2%) percent increase over the Compensation Schedule effective July 1, 1985.

## C. Effective July 1, 1986

- 1. All employees covered by this Contract shall have their salaries adjusted step-to-step from the Compensation Schedule effective January 1, 1986 to the Compensation Schedule effective July 1, 1986 found in Appendix A of this Agreement, which reflects approximately a four (4%) percent increase over the Compensation Schedule effective January 1, 1986.
- 2. The July 1, 1986 Compensation Schedule reflects the inclusion of one additional step (11th Step) on each salary range, which establishes a new maximum for each salary range. All employees who had reached max on or before July 1, 1985, and who have a satisfactory evaluation for the 12-month period ending June 30, 1986, shall receive an Anniversary Increment placing them on the eleventh (11th) step of their salary range effective July 1, 1986.

#### D. Effective January 1, 1987

- 1. All employees covered by this Contract shall have their salaries adjusted step-to-step from the Compensation Schedule effective July 1, 1986 to the Compensation Schedule effective January 1, 1987 found in Appendix A of this Agreement, which reflects approximately a two (2%) percent increase over the Compensation Schedule effective July 1, 1986.
- E. Employees not at the maximum of their salary range shall be entitled to a Merit Increment on the anniversary date provided they have satisfactorily completed at least one (1) year of continuous service.
  - 1. Employees shall be entitled to a merit increment on quarterly basis as follows:
    - a. Employees hired on January 3 through April 1 shall receive an increment on April 1st of the following year.
    - b. Employees hired on April 2 through July 1 will receive and increment on July 1st of the following year.
    - c. Employees hired on July 2 through October 1 will receive an increment on October 1st of the following year.

- d. Employees hired on October 2 through December 31 will receive an increment on January 1st of the second year following date of hire. Those hired on January 1 and January 2 will receive their increment on January ist of the following year.
- Anniversary dates once established by the date of hire will not change as
  a result of promotion. Anniversary dates which changed as a result of promotion prior to the effective date of this Contract will remain as previously
  changed.
- F. Any employee who is promoted or reclassified to another title with a higher salary range shall have his/her salary adjusted so that it provides an increase in pay of one increment of the present salary range (5% of the base of the range) plus the amount (if necessary) to adjust and equalize the employee's salary to the proper step of the new salary range.

Any employee who is demoted or being appointed to another title with a lower salary range shall have his/her salary adjusted so that it provides a deduction of one increment of the present salary range less any additional amount (if necessary) to adjust and equalize the employee's salary to the proper step of the title to which he/she is being reassigned. Another acceptable procedure would be to reconstruct the employee's salary on the basis of the employee's previous employment record.

#### ARTICLE XVI - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The parties agree that they have fully bargained and agreed upon all terms and conditions of employment.
- B. The Board retains and reserves unto itself all rights, powers, duties, authority and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey.
- C. All such rights, powers, authority and prerogatives of management possessed by the Board are retained, subject to limitations imposed by law, except as they are specifically abridged or modified by this Agreement.
- D. The Board retains its responsibility to promulgate and enforce rules and regulations, subject to limitations imposed by iaw, governing the conduct and activities of employees not inconsistent with the express provisions of this Agreement.
- E. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement or by all applicable regulations, nothing contained herein shall be interpreted and/or applied so as to eliminate, reduce, or otherwise detract from any employee benefit existing prior to the effective date of this Agreement.
- F. No employee shall be disciplined by discharge, reprimand, reduction in rank and compensation, deprivation of any professional advantage or any adverse evaluation of his professional services without just cause. Any such action asserted by the Board, if it is not appealable to Civil Service, may be subject to the grievance procedure herein set forth.

# ARTICLE XVII - FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

The Board agrees to make every reasonable effort to provide employees covered by this Contract with the supplies, equipment and telephone service adequate to perform their duties and responsibilities.

## ARTICLE XVIII - HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Organization shall be permitted to have one member sit on the Health and Safety Committee. Said member shall incur no loss of pay for time so spent.

The Board shall continue to make reasonable provisions for the safety and health of all employees during the hours of their employment, in accordance with the requirements of New Jersey State laws.

## ARTICLE XIX - EMPLOYMENT SECURITY

Unless there is a loss of funding or elimination of a program or disciplinary action, persons presently employed by the Board who have permanent status in any title shall be, during the term of this Agreement, retained in such classification or in an equivalent classification carrying an equal salary range.

#### APPENDIX A

# MIDDLESEX COUNTY BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SCHEDULE FOR

# MIDDLESEX COUNTY WELFARE ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES' CONTRACT

#### REVISED EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 1985

TITLE	SALARY RANGE <u>EFF. 7/I/85</u>
Administrative Analyst, Welfare	25
Administrative Supervisor of Income Maintenance	28
Administrative Supervisor of Social Work	28
Assistant Administrative Supervisor of Income Maintenance	26
Assistant Administrative Supervisor of Social Work	26
Assistant Chief Investigator, County Welfare Agency	25
Assistant Training Supervisor, County Welfare Agency	25
Chief Clerk, County Welfare Agency	25
Chief Investigator	27
Chief of Administrative Services	25
Consulant on Aging	24
Data Processing Coordinator	27
Field Office Supervisor, CWA	28
Homemaker Service Supervisor/Senior Community Planner	25
Management Specialist	25
Public Information Officer	25
Senior Personnel Technician	25
Supervising Administrative Analyst	27
Training Supervisor, County Welfare Agency	27

MIDDLESEX COUNTY HOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES SALARY SCHEDULE JULY 1, 1985

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P						
\$\text{STEP}\$  1  2  3  4  \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\$ \text{6}\$  \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\$ \frac{5}{1}\$  \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\$ \frac{5}{1}\$  \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\$ \frac{5}{1}\$  \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\frac{5}{1}\$  \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\frac{5}{1}\$  \$\frac{5}{1}\$ \$\frac	•	ΧΑΥ	38,0	39,9	41,9	44,0
\$\text{STEP}\$  1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  \$\text{\$5}\$  \$\text{\$5,44}\$  \$\text{\$5,44}\$  \$\text{\$5,568}\$  \$\text{\$27,568}\$  \$\text{\$28,946}\$  \$\text{\$30,394}\$  \$\text{\$31,703}\$  \$\text{\$34,736}\$  \$\text{\$34,182}\$  \$\text{\$35,838}\$  \$\text{\$31,613}\$  \$\text{\$34,953}\$  \$\text{\$36,472}\$  \$\text{\$37,992}\$  \$\text{\$39,512}\$  \$\text{\$41,03}\$		۰.	36,75	38,5	5	42,
\$\text{STEP}\$  1  \$\text{\$1\$}\$  \$\text{\$26,255}\$ \\$\text{\$427,568}\$ \\$\text{\$428}\$ \\$\text{\$81}\$ \\$\text{\$430,193}\$ \\$\text{\$31,703}\$ \\$\text{\$431,946}\$ \\$\text{\$431,841}\$ \\$\text{\$431,288}\$ \\$\text{\$437,982}\$ \\$\text{\$431,913}\$ \\$\text{\$433,433}\$ \\$\text{\$434,953}\$ \\$\text{\$437,992}\$ \\$\text{\$437,992}\$		<b>ω</b>	35,44	37,21	39,0	41
\$\text{STEP}\$  1  \$\text{1}\$  \$\text{26},255 \pms_268 \pms_28,881 \pms_30,193 \pms_31,506 \pms_32,81 \pms_27,568 \pms_28,946 \pms_30,325 \pms_31,703 \pms_33,082 \pms_34,46 \pms_28,946 \pms_30,394 \pms_31,841 \pms_33,288 \pms_34,736 \pms_36,18 \pms_30,394 \pms_31,913 \pms_33,433 \pms_34,953 \pms_36,472 \pms_37,99		2	34,13	35,		io.
\$\text{STEP}\$  1		•	32,81	4,4	5,18	
\$26,255 \$27,568 \$28,881 \$30,15\$ \$27,568 \$28,946 \$30,325 \$31,70\$ \$30,394 \$31,841 \$33,28\$ \$30,394 \$31,913 \$33,433 \$34.99		ın	31,50	33,08	34,73	36,47
\$26,255 \$27,568 \$28,\$27,568 \$30,\$28,946 \$30,394 \$31,913 \$33.	•	4	\$30,193	<b>\$31,703</b>	<b>\$33,288</b>	
STEP 2 1 2 \$26,255 \$27,56 \$27,568 \$28,94 \$28,946 \$30,39 \$30,394 \$31,91	٠.٠	m	28	30	31,	e
\$1E \$26,2 \$27,5 \$28,9		7	56	94	ന	\$31,913
	Шł	-	26,25	27,5	0	
		œ	ı			

MIDDLESEX COUNTY BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES SALARY SCHEDULE

	MAX	\$38,831 \$40,773 \$42,812 \$44,952
	٥	\$37,492 \$39,367 \$41,335 \$43,402
	ω	\$36,153 \$37,961 \$39,859 \$41,852
	^	\$34,814 \$36,555 \$38,383 \$40,302
	<b>*0</b> 	\$33,475 \$35,149 \$36,907 \$38,752
EDULE 1986	មា	\$32,136 \$33,743 \$35,430 \$37,202
	4	\$30,797 \$32,337. \$33,954 \$35,652
	ej O	\$29,458 \$30,931 \$32,478 \$34,102
	CI.	\$28,119 \$29,525 \$31,002 \$32,552
	<b>-</b> ,	\$26,780 \$28,119 \$29,525 \$31,002
	œ	25 27 28 28

MIDDLESEX COUNTY BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES SALARY SCHEDULE JULY 1, 1986

YAY.	\$41,777 \$43,866 \$46,059 \$48,362
10	\$40,385 \$42,404 \$44,524 \$46,750
٥	\$38,992 \$40,942 \$42,989 \$45,138
<b>60</b>	\$37,599 \$39,479 \$41,453 \$43,526
2	\$36,207 \$38,017 \$39,918 \$41,914
<b>v</b>	\$34,814 \$36,555 \$38,383 \$40,302
ស	\$33,422 \$35,093 \$36,847 \$38,690
4	\$32,029 \$33,631 \$35,312 \$37,078
ິຕ	\$30,637 \$32,168 \$33,777 \$35,466
Ġ	\$29,244 \$30,706 \$32,242 \$33,854
-	\$27,851 \$29,244 \$30,706 \$32,242
œ	25 26 27 28

MIDDLESEX COUNTY BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES SALARY SCHEDULE JANUARY 1, 1987

	XAM	\$42,613 \$44,743 \$46,981 \$49,330
	10	\$41,192 \$43,252 \$45,415 \$47,685
	٥	\$39,772 \$41,760 \$43,849 \$46,041
	89	\$38,351 \$40,269 \$42,283 \$44,397
•	<b>6</b>	\$36,931 \$38,778 \$40,716
	•	\$35,511 \$37,286 \$39,150 \$41,108
5		\$34,090 \$35,795 \$37,584 \$39,464
	4	\$32,670 \$34,303 \$36,018 \$37,819
	ო	\$31,249 \$32,812 \$34,452 \$36,175
	74	\$29,829 \$31,320 \$32,886 \$34,531
	-	\$28,409 \$29,829 \$31,320 \$32,886
	~	25 26 27 28

ł			
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2			

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by its respective officers or agents on this 2 Hday of Secender, 1985.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY WELFARE AMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES' ORGANIZATION

Fraine Minkler Brosident

alan Hunter

aprell macharous

MIDDLESEX COUNTY BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES

Mary L. Hallie

Hervell P. Beradiet

-			*
		,	
			,
			: